
MINUTES OF THE  
694th MEETING OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF SALT LAKE CITY 

Tuesday, April 12, 2011 
451 South State Street, Room 326 

Salt Lake City, Utah 
2:00 pm 

 
 

Chairperson Garrott stated that Vice Chairperson Christensen and Director Martin were in transit 
and should arrive to the meeting soon. 
 
Some items were considered in an order different than listed on the agenda, time stamps shown 
indicate when the items were discussed. 

 
1. 2:13:51 PM Roll Call.  The following members of the Board of Directors of the 
Redevelopment Agency of Salt Lake City were present: 
 

Luke Garrott, Chairperson 
Carlton Christensen, Vice Chairperson 
Søren Simonsen, Director 
JT Martin, Director 
Van Blair Turner, Director  
Jill Remington Love, Director 
Stan Penfold, Director 
 

Also Present: 
   
  Frank Gray, Director Salt Lake City Community and Economic Development 

D.J. Baxter, Executive Director  
Justin Belliveau, Deputy Director 
 

Others Attending: 
 
Matt Dahl, Project Manager 
Jill Wilkerson-Smith, Project Manager 
Travis Pearce, Property Manager 
Ed Butterfield, Project Manager 
Ben Davis, Project Coordinator 
Ashlie Taylor, Project Area Specialist 
Laura Kirwan, Agency Legal Counsel 
Crayola Berger, Office Manager 
Jennifer Bruno, Salt Lake City Council Office 
Bianca Shreeve, Salt Lake City Mayors Office 
Nathan Anderson, Citizen 



RDA Board Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 12, 2011 
Page 2 
 

Paul Christenson, Citizen 
Robin Hutchinson, Fehr and Peers 
Ben Logue, Tannach Properties.  
Lance Bullen, Woodbury Corporation  
Diane Banks, Fabian and Clendenin 
Chuck Depew, National Development Council 
Timothy Lowe, Waronzof 
 

2.  2:14:29 PM  Briefing by the Staff.  
 
Executive Director Baxter commented that members of the Board and representatives from 
UTA, South Salt Lake and RDA staff participated in a walking and bus tour of the Sugar House 
streetcar corridor on April 1. He felt the tour was very productive and that everyone benefited 
from seeing the opportunities and challenges that will be a part of this project.  
 
Executive Director Baxter welcomed Mr. Ben Davis to the RDA.  
 
3. DELAYED Approval of the Minutes from the Previous Meeting. 
 
4. 2:15:21 PM Report of the Chief Administrative Officer.  
 
Mr. Gray stated he was encouraged that the Federal funding for the Sugar House streetcar 
appears to remain intact, but that he was not yet sure if the downtown streetcar funding would 
remain.  
  
5. 2:16:30 PM Public Comments.  
 
Chairperson Garrott stated that there is a two minute limit for public comments. He asked Mr. 
Nathan Anderson and Mr. Paul Christenson to address the Board.  
 
2:17:15 PM  Mr. Anderson commented on the proposed West Temple Gateway Strategy with 
regard to the density and zoning. He said his company, Willow Heights, completed the mid block 
housing development on Washington Street and that he had hoped to repeat a similar 
development in this area. He felt the interior blocks of this area should be maintained as 
residential. With the current financial market, and new rules and regulations added by FHA with 
regard to attached and condominium dwellings, it is much easier to receive financing for single 
family homes. He said he is hopeful the zoning proposed in the strategy is approved, but that the 
interior blocks of Jefferson and Washington Streets are safeguarded as residential so that this 
type of development can be placed here to help retain the flavor of the neighborhood.  
 
2:21:01 PM  Mr. Christenson stated he is a resident of District 6 and the owner of three 
properties on Washington and Gale Streets between 900 South and the off ramp. He expressed 
concern with the process for the creation of the West Temple Gateway Strategy in that he was 
not invited to participate in the process. He also expressed concern with the direction on page 66 
of the strategy to include an overlay zone to change the D2 zoning. He indicated that he brought 
his concerns to RAC, and the Committee agreed zoning was not to be included in the report. Mr. 



RDA Board Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 12, 2011 
Page 3 
 
Christenson said he purchased these properties with the intention to build multi-family housing. 
He said he would welcome design restrictions south of 900 South, but that the 800 South blocks 
on Washington are very different in that there are only 13 single family homes on a total of 24 
parcels. He questioned if the RDA should use taxpayer money to purchase property for 
redevelopment, fund a redevelopment study, and then utilize the results to downzone to the 
detriment of taxpayers that purchased property in good faith while relying on the zoning. (Copy 
of Mr. Christenson’s comments attached.) 
 
6. Redevelopment Business/Routine Matters. 
 A. 2010-2011 Budget  
                        1) 2:23:41 PM Public Hearing for Adoption of the Second Amendment to 

2010/2011 Annual Implementation Budget. 
 
Chairperson Garrott opened the public hearing. He asked Executive Director Baxter to describe 
the budget amendment. A revised copy of the amendment to the budget was supplied to the 
Board.  
 
Executive Director Baxter stated that this amendment is to adjust the RDA’s budget based on the 
actual tax increment and other income received. Chairperson Garrott asked the general picture of 
the tax increment received. Executive Director Baxter said that two project areas, Depot District 
and Sugar House, received more funding than was budgeted as certain. In other areas the 
numbers were consistent with the budget estimates.  
 
Chairperson Garrott called for public comments on the budget amendment, there were none. 
Director Turner made a motion to close the public hearing. Director Love seconded the motion. 
Upon roll call, Chairperson Garrott declared the motion unanimously approved and the public 
hearing was closed. Vice Chairperson Christensen and Director Martin were not present for the 
vote. 
 
  2) 2:28:30 PM Consideration and Adoption of a “Resolution of the Board of  
   Directors of the Redevelopment Agency of Salt Lake City Adopting the  
   Second Amendment to the Annual Implementation Budget for the Fiscal  
   Year Commencing July 1, 2010 and Ending June 30, 2011." 
 
Director Turner made a motion to adopt the resolution. Director Simonsen seconded the motion. 
Upon roll call, Chairperson Garrott declared the motion unanimously approved and the 
resolution was adopted. Vice Chairperson Christensen and Director Martin were not present for 
the vote. 
 
 B. 2:28:52 PM  Consideration and Adoption of a “Resolution of the Board of   
  Directors of the Redevelopment Agency of Salt Lake City Approving Expenditure  
  of CBD Arts District Implementation Funds for Permanent Electrical Power  
  Upgrades for Pioneer Park.” 
 
Executive Director Baxter stated that as a part of the 2011-2012 budget process, the Arts Council 
requested funding to make permanent electrical upgrades in Pioneer Park. These upgrades would 



RDA Board Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 12, 2011 
Page 4 
 
help facilitate and reduce the cost of the production of the Twilight Concert Series by eliminating 
the need to rent generators to supply power for the concerts. It is possible to complete these 
upgrades prior to the concert season, which would save the Arts Council an estimated $16,000 
each year. The Parks Division is supportive of this request, and the improvements will benefit 
the Farmer’s Market.  
 
Director Love made a motion to adopt the resolution. Director Simonsen seconded the motion. 
Upon roll call, Chairperson Garrott declared the motion unanimously approved and the 
resolution was adopted. Vice Chairperson Christensen and Director Martin were not present for 
the vote.  
 

C.      4:01:50 PM Loan Extension Policy Consideration and Approval.  

Mr. Dahl said some of the primary tools utilized by the RDA to assist in redevelopment projects 
are its various the loan programs. The programs include loans for building renovation, new 
construction, environmental remediation and studies, and housing acquisition. Each program has 
terms that are beneficial to a borrower with low interest rates and because the monthly payments 
are amortized based on a 240 month term, making payments more affordable in an effort to 
allow the project to stabilize over the initial term. Many loans have been set up so that after this 
initial term, which has varied from ten to three years, the borrower is required to pay off the loan. 
These payments allow the RDA to provide a funding source for other projects.  
 
Over the years, this process has been successful, and borrowers have had the ability to pay off or 
refinance the loans on or before the balloon payment due date. With the current economic 
conditions, and difficulty in the financial market to refinance these loans, the RDA has been 
approached by some borrowers requesting extensions on their balloon payments. Staff 
recognized there is no policy in place to address these requests.  
 
Mr. Dahl said that the briefing memo reviewed several issues staff has identified in this process, 
and included a recommendation of a process for the Board’s review. This recommended process 
would require that:  
 

• The borrower should be in compliance with all terms of their RDA loan.  
• The borrower shall provide evidence that they have unsuccessfully sought refinancing 

from at least two legitimate lending institutions.  
• The borrower shall provide financial documentation, including tax returns, account 

balances, and other financial statements, showing that they are unable to reasonably pay 
the balloon payment.  

• The borrower shall provide all necessary documentation to verify their project still meets 
the loan-to-value ratio and debt service coverage requirements. 

• Borrower shall provide sufficient information to confirm that all loan guarantors will 
continue to guaranty the loan and have the financial resources to do so. 

• The maximum extension term shall be two years. 
• The interest rate during the extension period shall be 2% higher than the interest rate 

during the initial term, but not less than 3%. 
 



RDA Board Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 12, 2011 
Page 5 
 

• Borrowers shall make a partial balloon payment at the end of the initial term. The partial 
payment shall be 24% of the amount of the balloon payment. 

• Borrower shall pay an extension fee of 1% of the loan’s outstanding balance. The 
extension fee will not be applied to the loan principal or interest.  

• The monthly loan payment amount will be based on the original loan amount, though 
interest will only accrue on the outstanding principal. 

 
Vice Chairperson Christensen said he felt if a borrower was in financial difficulty and unable to 
qualify for conventional financing it may be difficult for them to make the partial balloon 
payment suggested. He asked if staff had considered amortizing the loan balance for a ten year 
period at a rate higher than the market rate at the time of the request. Mr. Dahl said several 
different programs were considered, and that the list before the Board is a suggestion. Staff feels 
it is important to have a policy in place that would provide relief for a borrower who could not 
make the balloon payment or refinance, but without the favorable terms allowed on the original 
loan.  
 
Director Penfold noted the variety of types of loans made and asked if there is a standard for the 
security the RDA seeks for its loans. Mr. Dahl said there is some variance, but for the most part 
the loans are secured by the property being improved. However, other real estate has been 
accepted as collateral if there is not adequate value in the property. The RDA has a 95% loan to 
value requirement for its loans. Director Penfold asked the reasoning behind the partial balloon 
payment requirement. Mr. Dahl stated that this was added in an effort to bring a portion of the 
funds back into the loan fund to be reused for other projects.  
 
Director Turner said the RDA is often utilized as gap or last resort for financing and takes a 
second or lower lien position on these projects. Given this, he asked what would happen if the 
borrower was unable to make the balloon payment or refinance. Mr. Dahl said the RDA holds a 
second lien position in a majority of its loans. In the event that no extensions were allowed, the 
default would be remedied by foreclosing on the project which would allow the first lien holder 
to be paid in full after which the RDA would receive its funds. He said there is anecdotal 
evidence that on recent foreclosures, those in a junior lien position are rarely repaid the entire 
loan balance due to the current market and the fees and penalties that must be paid. He added 
that should this situation arise, the RDA often has personal guarantees that could be called.  
 
Chairperson Garrott commented that he felt these loans are made to encourage redevelopment 
through the better than market terms, and as a method for the RDA to reinvest funds into the 
project areas. Given the current financial climate, he felt this is a role the RDA should be playing 
to a greater extent. He expressed concern that a policy that is harsh may be putting some projects 
in peril and force foreclosures, thereby violating the intent. He asked if the RDA had charged a 
service fee to extend loans in the past. Mr. Dahl answered no. Chairperson Garrott asked if other 
Board members felt creating stricter guidelines in the loan extension policy was outside the spirit 
of the original programs. 
 
Executive Director Baxter said he didn’t feel the intent was to be harsh but to provide a set of 
guidelines for the decisions to be made in the event an extension request is made. He felt it was 
important that borrowers know there is a policy for granting extensions. He felt there is a tension 



RDA Board Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 12, 2011 
Page 6 
 
between getting the funds out there and then getting them back so they can be loaned for new 
projects. Much of the RDA’s assistance comes in getting projects over the first hurdle. An 
example would be a loan the RDA made for a single family home less than a year ago. The loan 
has paid off and the documents releasing the lien were signed today. This borrower could not 
receive conventional financing and utilized funds from the RDA to build the home. Once it was 
built, it was eligible for conventional financing, so the borrower was able to refinance, the RDA 
was paid in full, and the money can be loaned again.  
 
Executive Director Baxter said he felt it is important that borrowers know what to expect when 
they come to the RDA for an extension, and that there are standards in place.  
 
Mr. Gray said he felt the favorable rates offered by the RDA may encourage borrowers to pay off 
other higher interest loans and ask for extensions from the RDA. He felt the intent behind these 
terms is to make the funds available to be loaned again in a relatively short time.  
 
Director Penfold felt if the RDA is trying to establish a policy to provide an opportunity for an 
extension where there is genuine hardship, a partial balloon payment may not be possible. He 
suggested changing the interest to a less favorable rate. He said he understood the balance, but 
felt he did not want to put the RDA in a situation where it is forced to foreclose because a 
borrower cannot make the partial payment. If there is truly a hardship it would be unfortunate 
that the second lien holder were to cause the foreclosure if the other debts are being met.  
 
Mr. Dahl said the process suggests several items to help assess the level of hardship. However, 
as with all loans, borrowers are allowed to bring special requests before the Board.  
 
Director Penfold said if the interest rate is raised just 2% higher than the original loan it could be 
less than market rate. He said he felt interest for extensions should be tied to the market rate. 
Vice Chairperson Christensen agreed. He said the wanted to assure this policy offered someone 
in need a viable solution without encouraging those who meet the terms to request an extension 
because of favorable rates.  
 
Vice Chairperson Christensen said he did not feel the payment should remain the same as the 
original terms. He suggested amortizing the remaining balance for a five year period with an 
interest rate of LIBOR plus 5 or 6 percent.  
 
Chairperson Garrott asked if Board members felt there should be a service fee of 1% for the 
extension. Vice Chairperson Christensen said he felt that is a suitable fee. 
 
The Board directed Mr. Dahl to rework the loan extension policy based on this discussion and 
return in May with a revised policy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RDA Board Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 12, 2011 
Page 7 
 
7. Redevelopment Business/Old Business. 
 A. State Street Development:  

1)    3:20:54 PM Consideration and Adoption of a “Resolution of the Board of 
 Directors of the Redevelopment Agency of Salt Lake City Approving an 
 Amendment to the Purchase and Sale Agreement with Tannach 
 Properties L.L.C. for  the Development of Agency Owned Property 
 Located at 237-255 South State Street and 241 And 247 Floral Street.” 

 
Chairperson Garrott recognized Mr. Ben Logue with Tannach Properties. Mr. Dahl stated that 
the resolution before the Board would approve a change in the number of and type of housing 
units in the project. Last October, Mr. Logue approached the Board and requested a change in 
the number of income targeted units for those making either 35% or 45% of AMI or less. At that 
time, the number of units remained at 157, but the distribution of income targeted units changed. 
Since then, the design and financing of the project has been reworked and the unit number and 
mix changed. Tannach is proposing a total of 180 units in the project, the distribution of income 
targeting has widened to include 35%, 45%, 50% and 60% of AMI, as well as some market rate. 
He said staff feels this variety will be beneficial to the success of the project. Mr. Dahl said that 
there is no change in the percentage of income targeted to market rate units. 
 
The Purchase and Sale Agreement previously approved states Tannach will build 157 units, plus 
or minus 5%. Staff is requesting the Board’s approval of these changes. 
 
Chairperson Garrott asked the percentage of market rate units. Mr. Logue answered that it is just 
under 25% of the total units.   
 
Vice Chairperson Christensen asked about the size of the units and the mix. Mr. Dahl stated that 
originally the project consisted of two and three bedroom units only. The mix now includes some 
studios, as well as one, two, and three bedroom units (with and without dens), and four bedroom 
units. Mr. Logue said many of these changes were driven by financing.  
 
Vice Chairperson Christensen made a motion to adopt the resolution. Director Simonsen 
seconded the motion. Upon roll call, Chairperson Garrott declared the motion unanimously 
approved and the resolution was adopted.  

 
2)  3:27:27 PM  Consideration and Adoption of a “Resolution of the Board of  

  Directors of the Redevelopment Agency of Salt Lake City Approving the  
 Final Construction Documents From Tannach Properties LLC for the   

  Development Of Agency Owned Property Located At 237-255 South   
  State Street and 241 and 247 Floral Street.” 

  
Mr. Dahl stated that the terms of the Purchase and Sale Agreement included requirements for 
design approval. The first two versions were to be reviewed by a design review committee of 
members of the Redevelopment Advisor Committee (RAC). A basic design was approved by the 
Board at the time of selection. The design was returned to the Board for review at the time the 
Purchase and Sale Agreement terms were approved. 30% and 60% completion drawings have 
been taken to the design review committee. With each progressive step, the plans are to be an 



RDA Board Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 12, 2011 
Page 8 
 
extension of the previous design, so the review committee has been asked to consider only items 
that had changed or were new to the design.  
 
The briefing memo outlines the items that have changed from the previous design. The first item 
is the location of the existing water tower. Tannach proposes placing the tower atop the seven 
story structure, however because the height will exceed the 100’ limit allowed by zoning, they 
will be required to seek a conditional use permit. If the developer is unsuccessful in receiving the 
permit, the tower is to be placed on the plaza on the east side of the development. The drawings 
include both locations. The second change, on the fourth level above the existing Regis and 
Cambridge hotels, replaces terrace or patio space with a vegetative roof. This change was made 
due to some management concerns as well as to add LEED points.  
 
Mr. Logue reviewed the design utilizing a power point presentation (copy included in the 
briefing materials).  
 
Chairperson Garrott asked if the arcade would be open 24 hours a day. Mr. Logue answered yes.  
 
Chairperson Garrott asked how the facades would be treated and expressed concern with design 
compatibility of the new building with the restored theater. Mr. Logue reviewed the design 
components, and assured the Board the treatments would be compatible. Mr. Logue provided 
photos of the restoration of the Stratford Apartments, which shows the same type of treatment 
that will be utilized for this project.  
 
Director Penfold asked about the water tower location. Mr. Logue said he felt the tower is a 
landmark, and stated that he preferred retaining its placement on top of the building. He said they 
have considered utilizing the tank as a backup to the sprinkling system, but will not know if that 
is possible until the condition of the tank is determined.   
 
Mr. Gray said the conditional use permit in this case is required because of the height. He did not 
feel there would be any issues in receiving the permit. Director Penfold said he appreciated the 
efforts to place this in a visible location and that he feels it could be a significant historic feature.  
 
Mr. Logue reviewed the renovation of the façade and interior of the Rex Theater, including the 
landscaping.  
 
The Board discussed treatment of the street in front of the Theater, and the possibility of working 
with the State to provide a pedestrian bulb out at the existing mid block walkway. Mr. Dahl 
commented that originally, Mr. Logue had indicated the lobby of the Theater could be recreated. 
However, the actual finish will be determined based on the tenant’s needs. 
 
Director Simonsen said he was comfortable with the scale of the project. He asked about the 
finishes for the storefronts. Mr. Logue stated that the historic feel would be continued in these 
finishes, and the window lines will be mimicked throughout.  
 
Director Penfold made a motion to adopt the resolution. Director Love seconded the motion.  



RDA Board Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 12, 2011 
Page 9 
 
Mr. Dahl added that these plans will be submitted to the building permit department, should any 
issues be brought to light during that process that would require changes to the design the items 
will be brought back before the Board for review and approval. He stated that the resolution 
includes a requirement that the plans be submitted by the end of this month.  
 
Director Turner thanked Mr. Logue for his tenacity in working through this project in these 
difficult times, he felt with every design review the project has gotten better, and that the 
historical component is superb.  
 
Upon roll call, Chairperson Garrott declared the motion unanimously approved and the 
resolution was adopted.  
 
 B.  2:31:45 PM Consideration and Adoption of a “Resolution of the Board of  
 Directors of the Redevelopment Agency of Salt Lake City Authorizing the  
 Agency to Enter into an Agreement with Fehr and Peers, Inc. for a Sugar House  
 Alternatives Analysis, Circulation Plan, Trail Study, Streetscape, and Housing 
 Plan.” 
 
  AND Consideration and Approval of Additional Funds for a Sugar House 

Alternatives Analysis, Circulation Plan, Trail Study, Streetscape, and Housing 
Plan from the Sugar House Project Area. 

 
Chairperson Garrott recognized Robin Hutchinson with Fehr and Peers. Mr. Butterfield said that 
last month, the Board approved the selection of Fehr and Peers to complete this plan and 
instructed staff to negotiate the work scope and return to the Board with the scope and budget. 
The work will include a second phase alternatives analysis. The first phase has been completed 
from the Central Point Trax station to McClelland Street. This work will consider where the 
second phase of the street car will go after the McClelland stop, how it passes through the 
business district, and the final destination. It will also consider the circulation streetscape plan for 
the Sugar House area, bike trails, pedestrian connections, traffic calming features and other 
things needed to help create multi modal access in the area.  
 
They will also be doing a Jordan and Salt Lake City Canal study. This was added by the 
Transportation Division and is outside the original scope. An affordable housing study has also 
been added. 
 
Vice Chairperson Christensen arrives to the meeting. 
 
Director Simonsen commented that with regard to the McClelland corridor study, there are some 
specific issues with the timing of development on the Granite Block. There have been 
discussions on the possibility of fast tracking the consideration of alternatives for that block 
specifically. There is a need for the recommendations to be available within the next two months. 
He asked how this need is addressed as a part of this scope of work. Mr. Butterfield provided a 
handout showing the organizational chart for the project, and a proposed timeline. He said the 
Granite Block and McClelland Trail will be the top priority in the work. He reviewed the 
handout, outlining the groups involved, the work to be completed, and the timing.  



RDA Board Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 12, 2011 
Page 10 
 
Director Simonsen said he would like to see some deliverables in the business district with 
regard the McClelland Canal because there is a need to have documentation that can serve as a 
plan for developments that are moving forward on that block so they are not delayed. He asked 
that this be reflected in the schedule.  
 
Ms. Hutchinson noted that the prioritization of the Granite Block and defining the trail 
alternatives through the development area are listed on page four of the written scope of work. 
She said text could be added to include that a documented recommendation will be prepared at 
that time.  
 
Director Simonsen said he felt it was important that a guiding document be completed that could 
be utilized by the Planning Commission, Planning Division, and developers making decisions on 
projects in this area. Mr. Butterfield agreed, and said the goal with the circulation plan is to have 
it adopted into the Sugar House Master Plan. 
 
Director Love commented on the cost for the work. She noted that in the proposed 2011-2012 
budget, there is funding allocated in the Sugar House project area for a portion of the costs of a 
planner to work on RDA projects. She asked if allocation of this funding would affect the RDA’s 
ability to fund this position and the items slated for their work. Executive Director Baxter said 
that funding for this work will not be taken from the 2011-2012 budget and that the items the 
planner will address could be prioritized by the Board in the future.  
 
Chairperson Garrott asked what types of design guidelines would be delivered through this work. 
Mr. Butterfield said a design template would be completed for the various blocks based on the 
land uses. Mr. Gray said it will be similar to the plan done by the City for North Temple Street.  
Chairperson Garrott clarified that these guidelines would be added to the code. Mr. Butterfield 
answered yes and said the goal is to have the zoning ready to go at the end of this process. Staff 
is meeting with the Planning Commission tomorrow to update them on the steps being taken in 
this process.  
 
Director Simonsen asked if staff is anticipating some zoning recommendations and potentially 
new ordinances or modifications to existing ordinances. Mr. Gray said this has yet to be 
determined. Director Simonsen said it may be appropriate to address the historic preservation 
component as a part of this work. There are historic structures within the areas being considered 
for transit oriented development. He felt it would be nice if, as these zoning recommendations 
are being considered, they could include provisions for preservation of historic structures. The 
RDA has completed a report that recommends which structures should be preserved that could 
be utilized in this effort.  
 
Mr. Butterfield said those considerations could be made, the RDA could help with the visioning 
scope but the historic portion would have to be completed by the Planning Division and adopted 
by the City Council.  
  
Director Simonsen asked if Citiventure was primarily considering the land use issues along the 
corridor. Mr. Butterfield answered yes. Citiventure will consider land use and visioning, 
including the appearance of the trail, materials, how it will interface with Parley’s Trail, and 



RDA Board Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 12, 2011 
Page 11 
 
possibly the design of the stations. Some work will be in the UTA right of way and some in the 
adjacent parcels.  
 
Chairperson Garrott asked Mr. Gray if the zoning will follow the performance/form based 
philosophy that was utilized on North Temple. Mr. Gray said he felt that was one of the tools that 
would be considered. Because of the varied land uses in this area there will likely be a series of 
tools considered especially in the areas that are primarily residential. Director Simonsen said that 
two of the six residential blocks were just placed on the National Historic register. Mr. Gray felt 
the final report would include a series of zoning tools that would be available and a 
recommendation of what should be applied.  
 
Mr. Butterfield stated that Citiventure would be considering only the area from McClelland 
Street to 500 East, so the land use issues east of McClelland will not be considered as these were 
addressed in the 2005 Master Plan updates.  
 
Director Martin arrives to the meeting. 
 
Chairperson Garrott asked about the scope of the stakeholders in this effort. Mr. Butterfield said 
Fehr and Peers scheduled work includes a stakeholder section and public outreach for each task. 
He asked Ms. Hutchinson to review the steps. Ms. Hutchinson reviewed the stakeholders and 
that would be included in these efforts. She said the circulation and streetscape work will be very 
focused on stakeholder and advisory participation. The primary activity for this portion of the 
work is a two day charette, both in the field and on site, to discuss issues and opportunities, and 
how the circulation should function in the business district. Additionally, there will be meetings 
with the individual stakeholders.  
 
For the third section, which is the Jordan and Salt Lake Canal, there will be stakeholder 
committee meetings and open houses. The stakeholder group for this portion of the work has not 
yet been built, Fehr and Peers will work with the City to do so, and it likely will involve Public 
Utilities and others in the City as well as trail advocacy groups and adjacent property owners.  
 
Chairperson Garrott expressed concern with the process to notify property owners, given the 
comment made by Mr. Christenson earlier indicating he had not been notified to participate in 
the process of the Granary-West Temple Gateway strategy although he is a property owner in the 
area. Ms. Hutchinson said the City will be asked to assist in identifying the property owners, and 
additional open houses are planned to allow anyone who is interested to attend. Chairperson 
Garrott asked that a very comprehensive list be compiled. Mr. Butterfield stated that the RDA 
will utilize GIS software to put together the list. 
 
Director Simonsen asked the process by which the advisory group will be identified and 
organized, he said several individuals had contacted him and asked to be involved in this project.  
Mr. Butterfield said Mr. Bill Knowles has set up a Community Action Committee (CAC) that is 
similar to what was done for the North Temple project work. This group will be utilized for the 
vision portion, along with stakeholders from the South Salt Lake City community, so there will 
be committees formed specifically for the trail and circulation plan. Mr. Butterfield said that 
once the consultants are brought under contract, they will begin work with city departments and 



RDA Board Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 12, 2011 
Page 12 
 
members of the community to identify the stakeholders and to disburse them effectively so they 
are not on multiple committees. 
 
Director Simonsen said there is a proposal as a part of the Mecham property development on the 
north east corner of the Granite Block to eliminate much if not all of the street parking on 
Highland Drive to accommodate a ramp access into a below grade parking structure. During the 
last Board meeting, when pre-approval of this loan was discussed, he asked if there is another 
way to accommodate the parking access. He felt the parking could be retained by moving the 
access to the middle of the street rather than on the edge. He felt this would also make a buffer 
between the busy street and the sidewalk. He asked if this is something that could be included in 
this plan, or as a part of the general analysis. He said the Highland Drive corridor is a critical 
piece because it is the center of pedestrian life in Sugar House as well as a busy thoroughfare. 
Ms. Hutchinson said this would be a consideration, in the pedestrian flow, bicycle connection, 
and the Pratt Trail. Fehr and Peers will also be considering how to efficiently handle the auto 
traffic that will be generated by the new development. Mr. Butterfield added that Fehr and Peers 
completed the initial studies for the Mecham Development so they have are very familiar with 
this project and have background information.  
 
Vice Chairperson Christensen made a motion to adopt the resolution authorizing the Agency to 
enter into an Agreement with Fehr and Peers, Inc. for a Sugar House Alternatives Analysis, 
Circulation Plan, Trail Study, Streetscape, and Housing Plan. Director Simonsen seconded the 
motion, subject to the items discussed. Executive Director Baxter asked Ms. Hutchinson if 
anything had been discussed that was not included in the original budget. Ms. Hutchinson 
clarified that Fehr and Peers will not be working with any historic properties other than 
coordinating with the work being done on the design guidelines. She said these items would be 
kept in the forefront in discussions of the economic development portion of the alternatives 
analysis, but will not be specifically addressed in the deliverables. Director Simonsen stated that 
these items would likely apply more to Citventure than to Fehr and Peers.  
 
Upon roll call, Chairperson Garrott declared the motion unanimously approved and the 
resolution was adopted.  
 
Director Simonsen made a motion to approve of the additional funds for a Sugar House 
Alternatives Analysis, Circulation Plan, Trail Study, Streetscape, and Housing Plan from the 
Sugar House Project Area. Vice Chairperson Christensen seconded the motion. Upon roll call, 
Chairperson Garrott declared the motion unanimously approved.  
 
 C.  3:10:39 PM  Consideration and Approval of a Work Scope for the Sugar House  
  Streetcar Land Use and Urban Design with Citiventure Associates, LLC. 
                        AND Consideration and Approval of Funding of a Work Scope for the Sugar  
  House Streetcar Land Use and Urban Design with Citiventure Associates, LLC. 
 
Mr. Butterfield stated that this motion would approve the work being done by Citiventure on the 
Sugar House Streetcar land use and Urban Design. He stated that this is being coordinated with 
South Salt Lake in order to create a common vision for the corridor so there are consistencies on 



RDA Board Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 12, 2011 
Page 13 
 
the line. South Salt Lake City will pay for half of this work through an Interlocal agreement. This 
will approve the scope of work for this work, as well as the funding.  
 
Director Simonsen asked that as mentioned discussed earlier, the urban design and land use 
include aspects of historic reservation. Mr. Butterfield this would pertain to Salt Lake City only, 
not South Salt Lake. Director Simonsen commented that some residential blocks were recently 
listed on the national register and the survey of the Sugar House business district. He felt both of 
those should be a part of the background documents that are considered. Mr. Butterfield said that 
Citiventure has the historic maps and that the current scope includes a review of the existing land 
use including historic preservation. He said this would be implemented by the Planning 
Department. Director Simonsen said he felt it was important that as a part of the urban design 
and land use and the corridor analysis, those documents are reviewed so significant historic 
structures are considered as a part of the plan. He said he would hate to see a plan that 
recommended, for example, the demolition of contributing homes in the historic district.  
 
Mr. Butterfield said this analysis will be made only to McClelland Street. Citiventure has been 
made aware of the historic context of the area, and they could be asked to coordinate with the 
Planning division to help determine how to integrate the design guidelines for historic elements 
into the final plan. He said this will be added to the scope of work. 
 
Director Simonsen made a motion to approve the Citiventure scope of work with the 
modifications as discussed. Director Love seconded the motion. Upon roll call, Chairperson 
Garrott declared the motion unanimously approved.  
 
Director Simonsen made a motion to approve the funding of the Citiventure Sugar House work 
scope from Sugar House Streetcar funds. Director Turner seconded the motion. Upon roll call, 
Chairperson Garrott declared the motion unanimously approved. 
 
 D. 4:29:52 PM  Consideration and Adoption of a “Resolution of the Board of   
  Directors of the Redevelopment Agency of Salt Lake City Approving the Fourth  
  Amendment to Exclusive Negotiations Agreement with Property Reserve, Inc.  
  and Suburban Land Reserve, Inc. for the Potential Acquisition of Property for  
  Construction of a Downtown Theater Located on Block 70.” 
 
Executive Director Baxter said the discussions continue on the purchase of this property, and that 
the draft of the feasibility assessment should be completed for the May meeting. The property 
owners have agreed to a two month extension of the existing agreement.  
 
Director Simonsen made a motion to adopt the resolution. Vice Chairperson Christensen 
seconded the motion. Upon roll call, Chairperson Garrott declared the motion unanimously 
approved and the resolution was adopted.  
 
 E. 4:31:39 PM Consideration and Adoption of a “Resolution of the Board of   
  Directors of the Redevelopment Agency of Salt Lake City Approving the   
  Final Terms for a Loan with Woodmen Properties Parking Garage L.L.C.   



RDA Board Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 12, 2011 
Page 14 
 
  For the Construction of a Mixed-Use Project on a Parcel Located at   
  2120 South 1300 East.” 
 
Deputy Director Belliveau stated this is a follow up of the final approval of the term sheet 
approved by the Board in January. He recognized Mr. Lance Bullen with Woodbury Corporation 
and Ms. Diane Banks with Fabian and Clendenin, RDA legal counsel in the negotiations and 
drafting of documents for this loan.  
 
Deputy Director Belliveau said this loan is to construct a parking garage which is a component of 
a project being built by Woodbury Corporation in Sugar House at 2120 South 1300 East. Two 
items have changed from the approved term sheet. The first is the loan amount. The initial 
request was for $3,550,000. This has been reduced to $3,370,000 based on the appraisal for the 
parking structure. The second item pertains to the charge allowed for the public parking spaces. 
The hourly rate is to be no greater than the hourly rate charges for public parking spaces in Salt 
Lake City for the first five years the structure is in operation.  
 
Vice Chairperson Christensen made a motion to adopt the resolution. Director Simonsen 
seconded the motion. Upon roll call, Chairperson Garrott declared the motion unanimously 
approved and the resolution was adopted.  
 
4:34:29 PM Chairperson Garrott recessed the meeting.  
 
4:40:56 PM Chairperson Garrott reconvened the meeting. 
 
 F. 4:40:57 PM Consideration and Approval of the West Temple Gateway   
  Redevelopment Strategy. 
 
Ms. Taylor introduced Mr. Chuck Depew with the National Development Council (NDC) and 
Mr. Timothy Lowe with Waronzof Associates, the sub-consultant that completed the economic 
analysis of the strategy. Ms. Taylor said this strategy is to provide a wide range of options and 
recommendations that can be utilized in the redevelopment of the West Temple Gateway and 
Granary project areas. 
 
Vice Chairperson Christensen clarified that given the scope of this study, it is likely the Board 
will not be prepared to make the final decision on this item at this time, Chairperson Garrott 
agreed.  
 
Ms. Taylor stated that in addition to the public comments made earlier in the meeting regarding 
this item, two additional comments were received via e-mail. Copies of these comments were 
distributed to the Board.   
 
Ms. Taylor said that because of large amount of property owned by the RDA in the West Temple 
Gateway project area, and given the current market challenges, NDC was chosen to complete an 
in depth economic and financial analysis of the conditions in this area in an effort to create a 
strategy that would assist staff to more efficiently and effectively redevelop these properties. 



RDA Board Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 12, 2011 
Page 15 
 
When this work was approved last fall, the Board also asked that the Fleet Block in the Granary 
District be included in this effort.  
 
Staff has been working with NDC to evaluate the timing, phasing, and tools that would be 
employed through this strategy, which is intended to be implemented in four ways: 
 

• Through the redevelopment of RDA owned properties. This will be presented as 
opportunity sites that will include the density, use and timing of redevelopment.   

•  Loan and Tax Reimbursement programs. Design guidelines and the knowledge 
from the strategy will be utilized to help direct individuals that come to the RDA 
for assistance.  

• The addition of amenities and infrastructure utilizing project area funds.  
• Working with developers and other property owners to utilize the design 

guidelines to direct a more consistent character and charm throughout the 
neighborhood.  

 
Ms. Taylor said that the presentation to be given to the Board will include background, strategy 
goals, market conditions, peer communities, findings and recommendation. The presentation will 
also include the land use recommendations, including both zoning and design guidelines, the 
property approach addressing the RDA owned properties, and the final recommendations. The 
goals of this study are to make a more walkable, pedestrian friendly environment, and to 
consider a mix of uses including open spaces, streets and traffic circulation, public services, and 
activities to support new development in the area including economic activities. 
 
Mr. Depew reviewed the strategy utilizing a power point presentation (copy attached).  
 
The Board discussed opportunities to the south of 300 West and 900 South and the need to 
remove incompatible uses. Mr. Dahl commented about the interest of some single family home 
owners in the area to enhance or protect the single family housing in the RMF 75 zone between 
800 and 900 South. As a part of that discussion, this concept was moved down to 900 South to 
encompass Washington Street between 900 South and Fayette. Mr. Lowe commented that the 
addition of open space will be the key driver for the development south of 900 South.  
 
The Board discussed the importance of open space and its location. Mr. Lowe stated that more 
importantly, employment opportunities are needed. He felt there was a real opportunity to 
encourage this type of growth with the proper branding of this area. Mr. Gray commented about 
the need for active marketing.  
 
Chairperson Garrott commented that the neighborhood currently has a mix of residents and 
businesses. Ms. Taylor said she has been working with a group that is encouraging grassroots 
type development. Their focus is partnering and matchmaking, whereby they encourage property 
owners who would like to stay in the neighborhood but may be engaged in what may be 
considered incompatible uses, to redevelop their property. There are people living and working 
here, and one of our first steps could be to build on these existing assets.  
 



RDA Board Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 12, 2011 
Page 16 
 
Mr. Depew said there are some wonderful models of redevelopment or revitalization of what are 
essentially heavy industrial areas in the west end of the Granary District. However, they are 
generally all incompatible with the mixed use goals the City has for the larger area. As an 
example, the study suggests a four story residential structure for quadrant B of the fleet block. At 
this time, such housing would overlook a metals recovery and scrap yard. That is simply not a 
satisfactory long term paradigm. The west end of the neighborhood has an opportunity for large 
land assemblages to create sites for larger employers and to help transition, over an appropriate 
period of time, by removing those noxious and generally incompatible uses through helping them 
relocate. These pieces will become the inventory for larger employers.  
 
Chairperson Garrott thanked Mr. Lowe and Mr. Depew and encouraged the Board to contact 
staff with any additional questions or concerns.  
 
Ms. Taylor stated that the last page of the memo includes an index of the areas or the study 
where different items can be located. Mr. Dahl asked if a tour of the area would be beneficial to 
the Board. The Board asked that such a tour be conducted prior to the May meeting.  
 
Vice Chairperson Christensen commented the importance of soliciting input from the property 
owners in the area. Mr. Dahl said that as a part of this process, there have been meetings with 
property owners and developers regarding this study. Staff has also met with the Community 
Councils from these areas, and the study has been available on the RDA website. Because there 
will be public processes for many of the steps required in the strategy, notices were not mailed to 
everyone in the area. Vice Chairperson Christensen felt it was important to inform those who 
have been vested in the process thus far that the Board is considering adopting this study.  
 
Director Martin suggested putting some yard signs in the area that describe the plan and direct 
interested parties to the website to view the plan and solicit feedback. Chairperson Garrott 
directed staff to do so. 
 
 G. 6:03:19 PM  Consideration and Approval of a Request for an Extension of a Loan  
  Between the Redevelopment Agency of Salt Lake City and Jeffrey  Evershed.  
 
Chairperson Garrott tabled this item to the May meeting.  
 
8. Redevelopment Business/ New Business. 

A. 6:03:33 PM  Consider Adopting a Motion to Enter into a Closed Meeting in 
 Keeping with  Utah Code to Discuss Pending Litigation and/or the 
 Acquisition/Disposition of Real Property and/or Attorney-Client Matters That are 
 Privileged, Pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 78b-1-137(2). 

 
Director Simonsen made a motion to enter into a closed meeting for the purposes stated on the 
agenda. Director Turner seconded the motion. Upon roll call, Chairperson Garrott declared the 
motion unanimously approved.  
 



RDA Board Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 12, 2011 
Page 17 
 
The closed meeting of the Board of Directors of the Redevelopment Agency of Salt Lake City 
was held at the City and County Building, 451 South State Street, in the Council Chamber 
conference room at 6:10 p.m. on Tuesday, April 12, 2011. 
 
Director Love recused herself from the closed meeting.  
 
The following members of the Board of Directors of the Redevelopment Agency of Salt Lake 
City were present:  Luke Garrott, Chairperson; Carlton Christensen, Vice Chairperson; Stan 
Penfold, Director; Søren Simonsen, Director; JT Martin, Director; and Van Turner, Director. 
 
The following members of the staff of the Redevelopment Agency of Salt Lake City were 
present:  D.J. Baxter, Executive Director; Justin Belliveau, Deputy Director; Laura Kirwan, 
Legal Counsel; Edward Butterfield, Project Manager; Travis Pearce, Property Manager, and 
Crayola Berger, Office Manager. 
 
Others present: Frank Gray, Director Salt Lake City Community and Economic Development; 
Bianca Shreeve, Mayors Office; Jennifer Bruno, Salt Lake City Council Office. 
 
The Board discussed pending litigation and/or the acquisition /disposition of real property and/or 
attorney-client matters that are privileged.  
 
There being no further business, Chairperson Garrott asked for a motion to exit the closed 
meeting. Vice Chairperson Christensen made a motion to exit the closed meeting and Director 
Martin seconded the motion. Upon roll call Chairperson Garrott declared the motion 
unanimously approved and the closed meeting was adjourned at 6:20 p.m. 
 
Director Martin leaves the meeting.   
 
Director Love returns to the meeting. 
 
9. Budget 
 A. 2011/2012 Budget 
  1) 6:44:25 PM Ranking of Funding Proposals. 
 
Executive Director Baxter reviewed the allocation of certain and uncertain funds.  
 
Executive Director Baxter outlined the format of the ranking sheets before the Board. In each 
project area or fund, the sheets begin with sources. These include tax increment certain and 
uncertain, interest income, reallocation of funds, land sales proceeds, temporary property 
income, and loan payments that will be received. The next section lists the uses. The first group 
of items are non discretionary expenses such as debt service and tax reimbursement payments, 
administrative costs, a contract planner, a streetcar project manager, property maintenance fees 
and the State tax overpayment reserve. Executive Director Baxter said there is a new expense 
category as the Salt Lake County Assessor’s office recently notified the RDA that they will be 
withholding funds for assessment and collection levies that were not withheld in the past, this is 
approximately 1.7% of the tax increment.  



RDA Board Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 12, 2011 
Page 18 
 
 
After considering these expenses, the balance of the tax increment certain and uncertain is 
available for the Board to consider funding the requests that were received (which are listed by 
tab number) for each fund. He added that in most funds, a 5% housing allocation has also been 
made. 
 
The final columns on the spreadsheet shows the funding recommendations (rankings) for certain 
and uncertain funds made by the RAC and Chief Administrative Officer Becker, as well as the 
priorities for expenditure of any uncertain funds that are received.  
 
6:51:05 PM  Central Business District: 
 
The Board agreed with the rankings made by RAC and Chief Administrative Officer Becker for 
certain funds. Vice Chairperson Christensen asked if $200,000 was adequate to fund the Gallivan 
Art Tower. Executive Director Baxter said the estimate was $500,000, which he felt may be 
high. It was hoped that some of the cost of the tower would be donated. However, the focus has 
been on the reconstruction of the plaza so fundraising efforts have not begun.  
 
Vice Chairperson Christensen suggested following Chief Administrative Officer Becker’s 
recommendation for the uncertain funds.  
 
Director Simonsen asked how the funding for the Arts District Planning and Implementation 
would be utilized. Executive Director Baxter said the RDA has been accumulating funding for 
this for several years. Almost $1,000,000 has been utilized for the feasibility study and due 
diligence on the properties being considered. He said there is currently approximately 
$2,700,000 remaining in these funds. In the immediate term, this would be used to continue the 
analysis, and should it be determined that the project should be funded, this would be used to 
begin the design of the facility and purchase of the property.  
 
Director Simonsen suggested allocating the uncertain funds as recommended by Chief 
Administrative Officer Becker, but to prioritize them as recommended by RAC placing the 
Gallivan Art Tower and first priority. The Board agreed with this recommendation. 
 
6:59:03 PM  Sugar House Project area:  
 
Executive Director Baxter stated Chief Administrative Officer Becker recommended an 
increased amount of funding for both housing funds, and less for Streetscape Amenities. Vice 
Chairperson Christensen recommended following Chief Administrative Officer Becker’s 
recommendations. Director Simonsen asked if there were specific housing projects that would 
require the additional funding. Executive Director Baxter said there is one request for Project 
Area Housing funds in the form of a housing loan program in West Capitol Hill through Housing 
and Neighborhood Development. In City Wide Housing, there are a total of three requests from 
the Housing Trust Fund, Rail Road Quiet Zone, and SRO housing.  
 
Director Simonsen suggested following the RAC recommendation of $60,000 for Project Area 
Housing and Chief Administrative Officer Becker’s recommendation of $120,000 for City Wide 



RDA Board Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 12, 2011 
Page 19 
 
Housing. He said he would like to fund as many of the streetscape amenities in Sugar House as 
possible, especially given there are no specific requests for funding from the Project Area 
Housing fund. The Board agreed with these allocations, and with the recommendations for 
uncertain funding made by RAC and Chief Administrative Officer Becker.  
 
7:04:07 PM  West Temple Gateway: 
 
Director Love suggested following the recommendations of RAC and Chief Administrative 
Officer Becker.  
 
Chairperson Garrott asked about the balance available for land acquisition, noting that $400,000 
was requested but only $230,000 was recommended, he also asked the amounts available from 
previous years for public improvements and the streetcar. Executive Director Baxter stated that 
there is currently $190,000 for land acquisition, $200,000 for public improvements, and $87,000 
for the streetcar in West Temple Gateway. Mr. Dahl added that the remaining streetcar funds are 
dedicated to the matching funds approved last month for the Alternatives Analysis Study.  
 
Executive Director Baxter said RAC was concerned with the need for public improvements as 
well, but in the end he felt RAC recommended the funding to Land Acquisition and 
Development to provide funds for some key acquisitions that have been discussed recently. 
These include property to complete the mid block walkway near the TRAX station, and the 
purchase of another property that is adjacent to a parcel currently owned by the RDA that would 
make a more developable parcel.  
 
The Board directed staff to follow the certain and uncertain allocations as recommended by RAC 
and Chief Administrative Officer Becker.  
 
7:07:18 PM  West Capitol Hill: 
 
Director Love suggested following the recommendations made by RAC and Chief 
Administrative Officer Becker.  
 
Director Simonsen asked the nature of the infrastructure improvements being recommended for 
funding. Executive Director Baxter answered primarily the mid street medians and landscaping 
on 300 West, this is a portion of the funding needed, so there will be multiple requests over the 
next several years.  
 
Director Simonsen questioned allocating funding to land acquisition, stating that the RDA 
currently owns a large amount of property in this project area that has not been developed. 
Director Penfold said there are currently some key properties on the west side of 300 West. He 
felt it was important to have a pool of funding available in the event these properties become 
available. Chairperson Garrott asked how much was currently available for property acquisition 
and infrastructure improvements. Mr. Butterfield answered $400,000 in Project Area Housing for 
West Capitol Hill, and $110,000 in existing funds, so approximately $500,000 is available for 
property acquisition and $868,454 currently allocated to infrastructure improvements which 
includes lighting. He added that in this project area, the RDA is obligated to utilize a total of 



RDA Board Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 12, 2011 
Page 20 
 
25% of the increment received to infrastructure, at this time only about 4% has been utilized. The 
community has identified the work on 300 South as a top priority as they feel this roadway 
divides their neighborhood.  
 
Director Simonsen suggested allocating more to infrastructure. Chairperson Garrott asked how 
close the RDA would be to its obligation if the amount recommended in the ranking was funded. 
Mr. Butterfield answered approximately 20%. Chairperson Garrott asked when the project area 
would sunset. Mr. Butterfield answered that this project area has a cap on the funding of 
$5,200,000 or a sunset date in 2022. Staff projects the cap will be met in two to three years. 
Director Penfold felt it would be at least a year until the infrastructure improvements on 300 
West are finalized. He said he was comfortable with the recommendations made by Chief 
Administrative Officer Becker and RAC. 
 
Director Love asked if there was funding available to plan for the mixed use development around 
the library. Mr. Butterfield said there is funding in Marketing and Sales from previous years’ 
allocations to complete that work.  
 
The Board directed staff to follow the recommendations made by RAC and Chief Administrative 
Officer Becker for certain funds. Director Simonsen asked that the uncertain funding be 
prioritized as infrastructure improvement as first priority and land acquisition as second, the 
Board agreed to this change.  
 
7:15:16 PM  Depot District: 
 
Director Love suggested following the recommendation made by Chief Administrative Officer 
Becker, which places more funding in the public market. Chairperson Garrott asked about the 
request made for the public market and if it would be a phased approach. Executive Director 
Baxter said the first step being considered is a more detailed study on how to best set up the 
market in the Rio Grande Depot, specifically because the original study was not based on a 
specific facility. This would include the details of the necessary improvements and their costs. In 
terms of a phased approach, they have discussed doing either permanent full scale improvements 
in the beginning, or a more low tech approach.   
 
Executive Director Baxter said he felt that RAC funded an amount they felt would be adequate to 
complete the study and make these decisions. RAC felt the petitioner could then return to the 
RDA and request additional funding. Chief Administrative Officer Becker felt if there was more 
funding available now the process could move forward as soon as possible after the study.  
 
Chairperson Garrott asked about the 300 South public improvements. Executive Director Baxter 
said that because of additional discussions with RAC, an additional unnumbered request was 
added after assembling the original funding request packet. This request is for Development 
Strategy Implementation, with the intent that instead of earmarking two or three individual 
projects within the development strategy, a single fund should be created that could be utilized 
for any of these items, depending on how the timing works. These funds could be utilized for any 
of the items listed in the strategy.  
 



RDA Board Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 12, 2011 
Page 21 
 
Vice Chairperson Christensen said he agreed with Chief Administrative Officer Becker’s 
suggestion for funding. He felt if there is a way to open the public market quickly it would be 
better than leaving the building unused for some time and that the recent legislation authorizing 
the use of the Depot could be overturned if another use is found.  
 
For the 300 South improvements, Vice Chairperson Christensen suggested the possibility of a 
special assessment area through the City to assist with the infrastructure.  
 
The Board directed staff to follow the recommendations made by RAC and Chief Administrative 
Officer Becker for certain and uncertain funds.  
 
7:22:04 PM  Granary District: 
 
The Board directed staff to follow the recommendations made by RAC and Chief Administrative 
Officer Becker for certain and uncertain funds.  
 
7:22:24 PM Project Area Housing: 
 
Executive Director Baxter asked Mr. Butterfield to brief the Board on the West Capitol Hill loan 
program request. Mr. Butterfield said while there are many housing programs to assist 
individuals earning 80% or less of AMI with housing, there are few programs for those who are 
above this income level. He said the intent of this program is to utilize the Housing and 
Neighborhood Development Department (HAND) to renovate two homes in the West Capitol 
Hill area. The RDA would provide funds for mortgages should there be applicants over 80% 
AMI. This will help to preserve and upgrade the existing housing stock and encourage home 
ownership. This would be a pilot program for this type of rehabilitation work.  
 
The Board directed staff to follow the recommendations made by Chief Administrative Officer 
Becker for certain and uncertain funds. 
 
7:24:14 PM  Program Income Fund: 
 
Executive Director Baxter said the items under tabs #3 Gallivan Art Tower and #4 Utah Theater 
Tenant Improvements were listed in both CBD and Program Income fund. These are items the 
Board has shown great interest in that likely could not be appropriated from the CBD due to the 
small amount of funding available. He suggested that these items could be funded through the 
Program Income Fund. Executive Director Baxter added that at this time, he feels there will be 
adequate funding for the Utah Theater work from the renovation funds previously allocated. 
 
The Board directed staff to follow the recommendations made by RAC and Chief Administrative 
Officer Becker for certain and uncertain funds.  
 
7:29:28 PM City Wide Housing: 
 
Executive Director Baxter reviewed the requests. The Board directed staff to follow the 
recommendations made by Chief Administrative Officer Becker for certain and uncertain funds. 



RDA Board Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 12, 2011 
Page 22 
 
Executive Director Baxter said SARR funds are debt payments only, so there are no allocations 
to be reviewed. 
 
Executive Director Baxter thanked the Board for their input, and said the allocations made will 
be listed as the draft budget to be reviewed at the May meeting.  
 
  2) 6:33:48 PM Review of Administrative Budget and Staffing Document. 
 
Executive Director Baxter clarified that the budget amendment adopted earlier in the meeting 
had been altered from the item placed in the briefing materials and was based on the amended 
copy placed at each Board members place at the dais. This added the reallocation of funds within 
the Depot District from existing loan funds to provide funding to implement recently adopted 
development strategy.  
 
Executive Director Baxter reviewed the administrative budget and staffing document. He stated 
the budget is increased partially due to a general increase in costs for the RDA’s use of the City’s 
computer and financial systems. The other portion of the increase is the addition of two positions 
which have been discussed with the Board in the past, an additional project coordinator and a 
communications position.  
 
Vice Chairperson Christensen asked if the public hearing for the budget adoption could be held 
at the May meeting to allow any comments or changes to be made prior to adoption in June. 
Executive Director Baxter said this would be done. 
 
Chairperson Garrott asked about the contract planner position that had been discussed. Executive 
Director Baxter said these costs have been allocated to the individual project area budgets that 
will require zoning changes rather than from the administrative budget.  
 
Board members asked for a definitive review of the projects and work scope for the new 
positions prior to the public hearing at the May meeting. Director Simonsen suggested the 
information be e-mailed to Board members. Executive Director Baxter said he would do so. 
 
Executive Director Baxter said the administrative budget will be included in the budget 
information to be adopted in June.  
 
10. Adjournment.  
 
7:33:12 PM  There being no further business, Chairperson Garrott declared the meeting 
adjourned.  

        
       _____________________________ 
       Luke Garrott, Chairperson 
 
 

This document along with the digital recording constitute the official minutes of the 
Redevelopment Agency of Salt Lake City Board of Directors meeting held April 12, 2011. 




